
Question & Answers and Reference Material related to RFP# OPM-SEC-10302019 
Identification and Recommendation of Efficiency Improvements in Connecticut State Government 

 

Question 1 
Item 4.b of the Scope of Services section of the RFP, lists functional areas.  Is the consultant tasked with 
reviewing these areas in each executive branch agency or in specific agencies?  For example, “general 
administrative services” takes place throughout State government but there is also a CT Department of 
Administrative Services. 
 
Answer to question 1 
The consultant is tasked with examining each State Executive Branch agency to understand existing 
workflows, unit deliverables, associated metrics, and staffing in order to make intelligent 
recommendations to ensure continuity of operations, increase automation, improve service, eliminate 
deliverables where possible, and right size the staffing against a backdrop of a substantial number of 
employee retirements by June 30, 2022.   
 
 
Question 2 
Item 4.b of the Scope of Services section of the RFP refers to “motor vehicles”.  Does this refer to vehicle 
licensing and registration that may be performed by a department of Motor Vehicles or a Secretary of 
State or does it refer to management of the State’s motor vehicle fleet? 

 
Answer to question 2 
In this instance delivery of services pertaining to motor vehicles refers to the Department of Motor 
Vehicles which handles a large variety of functions including driver licensing and services of the 
registration, automobile dealer licensing, and motor vehicle inspections among other things. 
  
 
Question 3 
The Contract Period of the RFP states: 

The State anticipates that the successful proposer will commence work on or about Monday, 
February 3, 2020 and continue until Friday, July 31, 2020. The contract may, upon mutual 
consent, be extended.  

The scope of services in the RFP is likely to take considerably longer than 6 months. Should we provide a 
workplan only covering what can be accomplished in 6 months, or should we provide a workplan that 
covers the entire scope of services presented in the RFP, even if the project timeline would exceed 6 
months? 

Answer to question 3 
Time is of the essence as a hard deadline of June 30, 2022 exists because a substantial number of 
employees will already have retired.  As a result, the consultant is tasked with examining each State 
Executive Branch agency to understand existing workflows, unit deliverables, associated metrics, and 
staffing in order to make intelligent recommendations to ensure continuity of operations, increase 
automation, improve service, eliminate deliverables where possible, and right size the staffing against a 
backdrop of a substantial number of employee retirements by June 30, 2022. 
   
Accordingly, the respondents should have sufficient staff to deliver a substantially completed report with 
recommendations by the advertised deadlines so the necessary implementation steps can be taken, 
including necessary legislative changes.   
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Question 4 
Required Format section: Section 3.e requests that we provide 3 letters of reference with the contact 
information.  Many governments do not provide letters of reference because it may be viewed as an 
endorsement; but they will respond to requests for references from another government.  Is it 
acceptable to provide contact information and a project description without a letter of reference? 
 
Answer to question 4 
The letters of reference requested should be from recent clients which includes both public and private.  
However, if a governmental agency will not provide a letter of reference, it is acceptable to submit 
contact information and a name for the assigned government contract administrator and project 
description. 
 
 
Question 5 
This section states a maximum of thirty (30) for each area in the Scope of Services.  Please confirm that 
this is a maximum of 120 pages (30 for each of the 4 items under Scope of Services) or a maximum of 30 
pages for the entire Scope of Services. 
 
Answer to question 5 
The Scope of Services contains four sections: Overall Project Management and Coordination, Mission of 
State Agencies, Continuity of Operations, and Expense Management of State Agencies.  The intent of the 
RFP is to limit to 30 pages for each section including Mission of State Agencies, Continuity of Operations, 
and Expense Management of State Agencies for a total of 90.   
 
Additional pages needed for Overall Project Management and Coordination, table of contents, proposer 
information, financial condition, references, resumes, conflicts of interest, and affidavits can extend the 
length of the proposal as needed. 
 
 
Question 6 
Required Format for Proposals, page 8 -- The RFP specifies that one (1) electronic copy must be 
submitted. Will the State accept a PDF file sent by e-mail to the Official State Contact? 

 
Answer to question 6 
The RFP states that five (5) copies as well as an electronic copy must be submitted by the due date and 
time.  A PDF of the proposal will be accepted but the PDF digital copy of the proposal must be included 
(typically on disk or thumb drive) with the five (5) hard copies by the due date. Disks or thumb drives used 
in the submission of digital copies will not be returned. 

 
 

Question 7 
Required Format for Proposals, Section 3d, page 9 -- Section 3d requests that proposers include two (2) 
recent financial statements. As privately held corporations do not publish financial statements, will the 
State consider an alternative statement confirming the privately held organization’s total gross 
revenues, shareholders' equity, comprehensive income, and working capital for the past two years to 
satisfy the requirement? 
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Answer to question 7 
Yes.  For privately held entity or newly formed business organizations the State will accept an alternative 
statement confirming the organization’s total gross revenues, shareholders' equity, comprehensive 
income, and working capital for past years. 
 
 
Question 8 
Required Format for Proposals, page 8 -- The RFP specifies that the maximum number of pages is thirty 
(30) for each area in the scope of services, but not including Sections 3b, 3c, 4, 5a, and 6. Can the State 
clarify and confirm what is expected to be included within each separate thirty (30) page count and 
what is to be duplicated throughout each Scope of Services section (e.g., is the State expecting a 
separate Section 4 – Statement of Work to be included for each Scope of Service area in 30 pages each 
and the other sections, such as relevant experience, staffing plan, and price only be included once)? 
 
Answer to question 8 
Please see the answer provided for question 5. 
 
 
Question 9 
Required Format for Proposals, pages 8-10; and Evaluation of Proposals, Section 5, page 11 -- The 
State plans to evaluate proposals based on “5. Demonstrated Commitment to Affirmative Action”; 
however, there is no stated requirement to include information regarding subcontractors or an 
affirmative action plan within the “Required Format for Proposals” section or any additional forms to be 
completed that provide information regarding potential subcontractors and/or affirmative action plan. 
Will the State confirm how they plan to evaluate this criteria factor? If information is requested, will the 
State specify where it should be included? 
 
Answer to question 9 
With respect to “Demonstrated Commitment to Affirmative Action”, the State will review the 
Commission on Human Rights and Opportunity Contract Compliance Regulations Compliance to Bidders 
form. 
 
 
Question 10 
RFP Conditions (O), page 6 -- The RFP states, “The proposer accepts the State’s Standard Contract 
Language”. As some companies may not be able to submit proposals without modifications/exceptions 
to the terms and conditions in Attachment A that exceed the standard clauses that are commonplace in 
the industry for these types of services, will the State be willing to negotiate a mutually acceptable 
contract with the awardee? 
 
Answer to question 10 
The State’s standard contract has been developed and reviewed over the years, in concert with the Office 
of the Attorney General. In many instances there are constitutional and statutory requirements for the 
standard clauses and as such no modifications of the language is permitted. Further, as Connecticut 
adheres to the doctrine of Sovereign Immunity, the state cannot agree to mutual cross indemnity or 
other similar industry contract standards.  
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Question 11 
RFP Conditions (B), page 4 -- RFP Condition B states that “Confidential Information must be separated 
and isolated from other material in the proposal and labeled CONFIDENTIAL and enclosed in a separate 
envelope.” Due to the manner in which offerors prepare their proposals, it may not always be possible 
to clearly segregate confidential and non-confidential information. For instance, only one paragraph on 
a given page may contain confidential information while the remainder is non-confidential. To ensure 
that vendors have the opportunity to protect their confidential information, would the State allow 
offerors to submit a redacted version of the proposal along with a version that indicates the proposed 
redactions in lieu of extracting and compiling confidential content in a separate envelope? Given that 
confidential information may include trade secrets, this will allow the State to evaluate the information 
within the proposal context to fully assess the soundness of the offeror’s approach. 
 
Answer to question 11 
The State will accept a redacted copy of the proposal along with a version including proposed redactions. 
 
 
Question 12 
RFP Budget -- Is the State able to share a “not-to-exceed” budget for the project? Without such 
information, based on a fixed price structure to the RFP, some bidders may respond with proposals that 
substantially exceed the State’s budget for the project, while others may base their proposals on 
substantially lower commitment of resources than would best meet the State’s needs. By sharing a “not-
to-exceed” budget, the State can increase the likelihood of receiving a large number of proposals that 
meet the State’s needs within the State’s targeted budget for the project.  
 
Answer to question 12 
The State has not developed a “not to exceed budget” on this project.  We understand that a thorough 
analysis needs to be completed which should be articulated on Exhibit B, Cost Proposal 1 which is 
required.  Each proposer may submit optional alternative proposals on Exhibit B, Cost Proposal 2.  
 
 
Question 13 
Proposed cost, Section 6, page 9 -- Exhibit B provides space for bidders to provide an alternative cost 
proposal. Is it the State’s requirement that Cost Proposal 2 (if offered) must be for the identical scope of 
work as supported by Cost Proposal 1? Or would the State be interested to consider an alternative cost 
proposal that is based on incremental scope of support and resources, provided that this distinction in 
scope and resources is clearly delineated by bidders in Section 4 (Statement of Work) and Section 5 
(Personnel Resources)? Such an approach may afford the State greater flexibility in selecting the 
proposal (option) that represents the best value to the State. 
 
Answer to question 13 
Cost Proposal 1 which is required should represent the cost of the work the proposer believes needs to be 
undertaken to complete the task and make meaningful recommendations breaking down the cost by the 
categories detailed in Exhibit B. 
 
Cost Proposal 2 which is optional does not have to duplicate the Exhibit B Cost Proposal 1 categories.  By 
offering a second, optional proposal for the State to consider, the State hopes to receive creative and 
flexible proposals to complete the scope of services in the most efficient and cost-effective way possible. 
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Question 14 
Required Format for Proposals, page 8 -- Will the state allow for deviations from the 12-point-font 
requirement, for exhibits that are embedded in responses? 
  
Answer to question 14 
Yes, a 12-pitch font relates to narrative text and not the exhibits. 
 
 
Question 15 
RFP scope -- Given the forecasted 25% reduction in state employees reflected in the RFP, it may be 
important for OPM and your chosen contractor to consider as part of this engagement whether certain 
state operations may be conducted by outsourcing vendors, either indefinitely or as a means of ensuring 
continuity of operations. To ensure there is no real or perceived Conflict of Interest, such assessments 
will require an independent and objective review of state operations, without downstream commercial 
interests in outsourcing contracts, that could be potential outcomes from the state’s decisions on this 
engagement. In this context, can the state please confirm that the successful bidder selected for award 
of this effort may not currently provide outsourced operational services to the State of Connecticut (as a 
prime contractor or subcontractor), and may not bid on such outsourcing contracts in the future which 
may arise from this engagement? 
 
Answer to question 15 
Outsourcing is not a goal of this contract. 
 
 
Question 16 
Does this RFP involve all state agencies?  Is there an identified state organizational chart that serves as 
the starting point? 
 
Answer to question 16 
Yes, this RFP does involve the examination of all Executive Branch state agencies.  A worksheet entitled 
The State Executive Branch of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management Headcount and 
Appropriations as of June 30, 2019 prepared as of November 4, 2019 details headcount and salary 
appropriations for each State Executive Branch agency is attached.  As to an organization chart, no 
single State organization chart exists for this initiative. 
 
 
Question 17 
Can you please share information on the number of state employees, years of experience, agencies they 
work with and expected number of retirements by agency/year? 

 
 
Answer to question 17 
There are 30,985 State employees, excluding higher education with average years of service of 13.7 
years.  A worksheet entitled The State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management Headcount and 
Appropriations as of June 30, 2019 prepared as of November 4, 2019 details headcount and salary 
appropriations for each State agency is attached.  
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Answer to question 17 (cont.) 
Please understand that the number of possible retirements by June 30, 2022 is estimated.  That estimate 
is likely to be 5,000 current employees and possibly up to 10,000 current employees.  Finally, while 
15,000 current employees could retire, that scenario is unlikely. 
 
 
Question 18 
Can you please share agency-level financials and information on pressure points? 
 
Answer to question 18 
A worksheet entitled The State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management Headcount and 
Appropriations as of June 30, 2019 prepared as of November 4, 2019 details headcount and salary 
appropriations for each State agency is attached and is responsive to the question. 
 
 
Question 19 
Can you please share information on any extended forecasts relating to revenues, expenses, debt 
service, capital outlays, pension/OPEB contributions and revenue impact (cash cost) of maturing tax 
credits?  What is the anticipated impact of pensions/OPEB costs and tax credits? 

 
Answer to question 19 
The State of Connecticut’s July 9, 2019 credit opinion as detailed by Moody’s Investors Services is 
attached and is responsive to your question.  
 
 
Question 20 
Are there agency level staffing studies/analyses/reports that have been prepared internally or by 3rd 
party contractors that can be shared? 
 
Answer to question 20 
Yes.  There have been seven different State of Connecticut efficiency studies compiled dating back to 
1971.  All seven of the reports are expansive with some of the reports more illustrative than others.  A 
summary of all seven reports is attached for review.  
 
 
Question 21 
Are there studies or reports on changing demographics and the actual/anticipated impact of the new 
federal tax law capping the deduction for state taxes? 
 
Answer to question 21 
The State has not created a report of changing demographics or the impact of federal tax law changes 
capping state tax deductions for this initiative. 
 
 
Question 22 
How will project be managed on the state side?  Will OPM speak for the Governor's Office?  Will 
agencies have a voice in recommendations and, if so, how will this be coordinated? 
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Answer to question 22 
The management of this project will reside primarily in OPM in conjunction with the Governor’s Office.  
We envision that both agency heads, agency implementation staff, employees and state union 
leadership will have input in the recommendations.  The successful proposer should articulate a process 
whereby communication to and from agency heads, agency implementation staff, and employees is 
consistently gathered.  
 
 
Question 23 
If legislative changes are required, how will project timeline be managed to account for uncertainty? 
 
Answer to question 23 
OPM will, based on the recommendations contained within the report, handle legislative changes. 
 
 
Question 24 
Have any material IT investments been made in the recent past that are viewed as essential building 
blocks for any plan of reorganization? 
 
Answer to question 24 
Yes, the Core-CT integrated financial and human resources system.  Also, the administration's new 
Digital Services initiative is in the final stages of selecting a technology platform for citizen and business 
engagement, workflow and cross-agency integration as part of the Business One Stop procurement 

(19PSX0210).  This platform will be the foundation of a long-term strategy to provide a unified, 
personalized front-end for accessing state services and information, and additional productivity tools for 
state employees.  Additional details will be available in January when the procurement is complete. 
Further, the state has invested in a new Department of Motor Vehicles software platform. 
 
 
Question 25 
Please confirm the specific agencies that are in scope of this initiative.  What are the sizes of each 

agency? 

Answer to question 25 
A worksheet entitled The State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management Headcount and 
Appropriations as of June 30, 2019 prepared as of November 4, 2019 details headcount and salary 
appropriations for each State agency is attached.  
 
 
Question 26 
Have you prioritized the list of agencies based on need?  If so, can you share the list? 

Answer to question 26 
Aside from the list of agencies attached related to Question 25 above, no prioritization has been made. 
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Question 27 
What are the anticipated levels of retirement across the different agencies?  Are there agencies that will 

have significantly higher or lower retirement %’s than others?  

Answer to question 27 
Currently, there are 30,985 State employees excluding higher education with average years of service of 
13.7 years.  A worksheet entitled The State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management Headcount 
and Appropriations as of June 30, 2019 prepared as of November 4, 2019 details headcount and salary 
appropriations for each State agency is attached.  
 
Please understand that the number of possible retirements by June 30, 2022 is estimated.  That estimate 
is likely to be 5,000 current employees and possibly up to 10,000 current employees.  Finally, while 
15,000 current employees could retire, that scenario is unlikely. 
 

We are currently examining the impact by agency, but that analysis has not been finalized.  

 
Question 28 
What specific goals and focus areas do you have in mind for revenue maximization? 

Answer to question 28 
We are leaving the revenue maximization ideas up to the creatively of each individual proposer. 

 
Question 29 
What work has been completed to date on this effort? 

Answer to question 29 
There have been seven different State of Connecticut efficiency studies compiled dating back to 1971.  All 
seven of the reports are expansive with some of the reports more illustrative than others.  A summary of 
all seven reports is attached for review.  
 
Due to the likely loss of a substantial number of State employees, the timely completion of this work is 

critical to continuity of operations, increased reliance on automation, reexamining agency deliverables, 

and represents a new way to look at more efficiently delivering State services to residents.   

 
Question 30 
As we define the staffing plan, can you share what, if any, key internal capabilities and roles will be 

provided to support the project? 

Answer to question 30 
The project resides within and will be managed by OPM, which is the Governor’s Budget Office.  The 

report recommendations will be implemented with the help of Agency Commissioners and Executive 

Directors, Agency implementation staff, employees and state union leadership.   

 
Question 31 
Have targets already been set for desired cost savings from this program? Are these targets overall or 

per individual agency?  Can you share these with us at this time?  
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Answer to question 31 
No targets by agency or for the organization have been created but cost savings are expected to be a 

product of this report.   

 
Time is of the essence as a hard deadline of June 30, 2022 exists because a substantial number of 
employees will already have retired.  As a result, the consultant is tasked with examining each State 
agency to understand existing workflows, unit deliverables, associated metrics, and staffing in order to 
make intelligent recommendations to ensure continuity of operations, increase automation, improve 
service, eliminate deliverables where possible, and right size the staffing against a backdrop of a 
substantial number of employee retirements by June 30, 2022.   
 
 
Question 32 
How would you describe the overall maturity of the organization’s culture of change readiness when 

considering process, organizational structure and technology? 

Answer to question 32 
As in any organization, change will likely be difficult, but in this instance, necessary for continuity. 

 
Question 33 
What benchmark data can you share to help illustrate areas of the business you have been focused on 

maturing and improving to date?  

Answer to question 33 
No benchmarking has been completed so the process to deliver existing services with an organization 

fractionally smaller in the future than today’s organization will be a substantial challenge.  

 
Question 34 
The RFP specifies that executive branch agencies are in scope for the project. Are there other agencies, 

commissions, or quasi-government agencies that will be involved in the project? If so, in what capacity? 

Are there any agencies within the executive branch that will not be involved, or involved in a different 

capacity than the other participating agencies? 

Answer to question 34 
The consultant is tasked with examining each State Executive Branch agency to understand existing 
workflows, unit deliverables, associated metrics, and staffing in order to make intelligent 
recommendations to ensure continuity of operations, increase automation, improve service, eliminate 
deliverables where possible, and right size the staffing against a backdrop of a substantial number of 
employee retirements by June 30, 2022. The report will not involve quasi-government agencies. 
 
The report recommendations will be implemented with the help of Agency Commissioner’s and Executive 

Directors, Agency Implementation staff, employees and state union leadership.   
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Question 35 
From the RFP format section (page 8), regarding the format criteria “Maximum number of pages: thirty 
(30) for each area in the Scope of Services not including Section 1, Table of Contents; Section 2, 
Proposer Information; Section 3d, Financial Condition; Section 3e, References; Section 5b, Resumes of 
Key Personnel; Section 7 Conflict of Interest; and Section 8 Affidavits.” Does this mean that the 
maximum number of pages dedicated to the four areas in scope is 120?  
 
Answer to question 35 
Please see answer provided for question 5. 
 
 
Question 36 
Has there been weighting or priority assigned to the 5 criteria listed on pages 10-11 of the RFP, including 
(1) Proposed Work Plan, (2) Proposed Cost, (3) Experience, Expertise and Capabilities, (4) References, (5) 
Demonstrated Commitment to Affirmative Action Plan? 
 
Answer to question 36 
The criteria listed on pages 10-11 will be weighted, but that is not available to the proposers at this time. 
 
 
 
 
 

Materials referenced as “attached” in the answers above are included in the pages to follow. 
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